
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call David Penrose, Governance 
Services on 01432 383690 or e-mail dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Health & Social Care Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

Date: Friday 22 March 2013 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

David Penrose, Governance Services 
Tel: 01432 383690 
Email: dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Health & Social 
Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Membership 

 

  
Chairman Councillor JW Millar 
Vice-Chairman Councillor SJ Robertson 
  

Councillor PA Andrews  
Councillor PL Bettington  
Councillor WLS Bowen  
Councillor MJK Cooper  
Councillor KS Guthrie  
Councillor JLV Kenyon  
Councillor JG Lester  
Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes  
Councillor J Stone  
Councillor GA Vaughan-Powell  
Councillor PJ Watts  

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  22 MARCH 2013 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details of any Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 

of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES   9 - 18  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on the 1st and 7th of 

February 2013 
 

   
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 
(There will be no discussion of the issue at the time when the matter is raised.  
Consideration will be given to whether it should form part of the Committee’s work 
programme when compared with other competing priorities.) 

 

   
6. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC     
   
 To note questions received from the public and the items to which they 

relate. 
 
(Questions are welcomed for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee meeting so 
long as the question is directly related to an item listed on the agenda.  If you have 
a question you would like to ask then please submit it no later than two working 
days before the meeting to the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an 
answer can be provided at the meeting).   

 

   
7. WEST MIDLANDS AMBULANCE NHS TRUST   19 - 20  
   
 To receive a report on the Trust’s Annual Plan for 2013/14.  
   
8. 2GETHER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST   21 - 22  
   
 To provide a report on the Trust’s Annual Plan for 2013/14.    
   
9. CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING - IMPROVEMENT  NOTICE AND 

PROGRESS ON THE OFSTED RECOMMENDATIONS   
23 - 50  

   
 To receive a report on the receipt of the Improvement Notice from the 

Department for Education and progress to date on the Ofsted 
recommendations. 

 

   
10. WORK PROGRAMME   51 - 56  
   
 To consider the Committee’s Work Programme.  
   





PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committee to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present 
if they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and 
consider whether it should form part of the Committee’s work 
programme when compared with other competing priorities. 

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an 
item listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask 
then please submit it no later than two working days before the 
meeting to the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an 
answer can be provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the 
Committee Officer can be found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committee is not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 
to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

Public Transport Links 

 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service that runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell 
Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar 
Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction with 
Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 

 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located 
in the circular car park at the front of the building.  A check will 
be undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 

 

7



8



 

 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Health & Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held at Council Chamber - Brockington on 
Friday 1 February 2013 at 9.00 am 
  

Present: Councillor JW Millar (Chairman) 
Councillor SJ Robertson (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: WLS Bowen, MJK Cooper, KS Guthrie, JLV Kenyon, GA Powell, 

J Stone and PJ Watts 
 
  
In attendance: Councillors EMK Chave, DW Greenow, JW Hope MBE, TM James, 

Brig P Jones CBE, C Nicholls, AJW Powers, A Seldon, GR Swinford and 
DB Wilcox 

  
Officers: D Taylor (Acting Chief Executive); J Davidson (Director, People’s Services); D 

Powell (Chief Officer, Finance and Commercial); R Taylor (Head of Finance – 
Peoples Services); M Seaton (Assistant Director); G Hardy (Governances 
Services Manager); G Dean (Scrutiny Officer); DJ Penrose and P James 
(Democratic Services Officers). 
 

31. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
Apologies were received from Councillor P Andrews and P Bettington. 
 

32. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)   
 
None. 
 

33. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

34. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC   
 
There were no suggestions from the public. 
 

35. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC   
 
There were no questions from the public. 
 

36. BUDGET 2013/14 AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY   
 
The Committee received a report on the Budget 2013/14 and the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy from the Chief Officer, Finance and Commercial.  The Chief Officer said that the 
report would be put to Cabinet on the 5th of February, and would be debated at Council on 
the 18th.  This would allow Council to be in the position to set the Council Tax for the coming 
year.  During his presentation, the Chief Officer highlighted the following areas: 
 
• That Herefordshire’s funding from central government would be reduced by 

£5.45m (6.9%) in 2013/14.  The proposed budget would meet this shortfall and other 
agreed pressures facing the Council.  Additional savings would need to be made in 
future years as Government grant was further reduced.   The budget was based on a 
1.9% Council Tax increase.  Total savings of £9.142m from the Root and Branch Review 

AGENDA ITEM 4

9



 

 

programme had been included to meet the budget shortfall as well as demographic 
and other service pressures that required funding. The funding available for the net 
budget would be £150.297m. This would be funded by Revenue Support Grant 
(£42.862m), retained business rates (£22.726m), Government top-up (£6.559m) and 
Council Tax (£78.911m) less an amount of £761k for a deficit brought forward on the 
Collection Fund. There was a possibility that government funding could change as 
the Final Settlement has not yet been announced. 
 

• That the 2013/14 budget had not increased in terms of overall funding 
despite moving from £143.359m in 2012/13 to £150.297m in 2013/14.  The 
“increase” represented money moving from specific grant in 2012/13 to general 
grant funding in 2013/14.  At the point of transfer between sources central 
government had cut the amount received by the Council. 

 
• The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) covered the period 2013/14 

to 2015/16 and included the Treasury Management Strategy. The document was 
part of an integrated set of policy and delivery documents designed to match 
available resources to corporate priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan.  

 
• That the government had set a four year Comprehensive Spending 

Review (CSR) over the period 2011/12 to 2014/15.  The latest announcement 
provided a two year funding position covering 2013/14 and 2014/15.  Within this 
context a corporate savings and transformation programme had been developed to 
be brought forward to provide major changes within a reduced funding envelope. 

 
• The Department of Health had confirmed funding to be transferred to local 

authorities to support adult social care services which also benefit health services.  
The new approach would see funding transferred via the NHS Commissioning 
Board and Herefordshire would receive £3.152m in 2013/14, compared to £2.274m 
in 2012/13.  The use to which the money would be put would be agreed between the 
Council and the Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group through the Health 
and Wellbeing Board. 

 
• That the pressures in Adult Services were driven by three challenges.  

These were an increase in demand associated with an ageing population and 
changing expectations, a reduction in the growth of public funding for health and 
social care and increasing chronic health conditions requiring long term, complex 
care and support. 

 
• That there were a number of additional risks to those normally associated 

with a budget setting process, and these were being mitigated wherever possible.  
 

In the ensuing discussion, the following points were raised: 
 

• That Herefordshire’s funding from central government would be reduced 
by £5.45m (6.9%) in 2013/14.  The proposed budget would meet this shortfall 
and other agreed pressures facing the Council.  Additional savings would need to 
be found. 

 
The Director for People’s Services said that the significant issue for Adult Social Care 
would be the ability to work within the available budget.  There would need to be a sharp 
focus on transitional change in order to find the most cost effective ways of spending 
available funds.  In the medium to long-term, what was needed was a complete 
transformation of thinking about need, and the arrangements that were made to meet the 
requirements of local people. 
 
In reply to a Member’s question, the Chief Officer said that he had been struck by the 

10



 

 

realism that the business community had shown in a recent meeting.  They were aware 
that the deficit reduction programme was affecting local authorities nationally, and that 
the Council had to make difficult choices in order to provide a balanced budget. 
 
In reply to a further question, the Cabinet Member (Corporate Services) said that he was 
not aware of any punitive measures that were planned against councils which had 
decided to raise their council tax for the coming year. The proposed raise of 1.9% in the 
tax for 2013 would raise the base budget carried forward by the Council into future 
years.  This rise would mean that Band D council tax in Herefordshire would still be £200 
lower than the average across England.  The Chief Officer added that it was necessary 
to plan for the future, and the Council had been prudent with the proposed 1.9% 
provision, rather than deciding to propose a higher increase, which would have triggered 
a referendum, and the associated costs. 
 

• That whilst a number of initiatives had been undertaken, such as the 
introduction of the Fairer Charging Policy, the Council was three of four years 
behind other authorities.  THe Root and Branch Review: Living and Wellbeing in 
Herefordshire would undertake discussions with the Halo Trust and the Courtyard 
in order to look at ways to reduce their subsidies with the expectation that those 
organisations would create alternative business models. 

 
In reply to a Member’s question, the Director of People’s Services said that there was 
evidence that it was possible to deliver the required savings, but that the pace and depth 
of change would need to increase.  Discussions were in hand with partner organisations 
as to how services could be provided in order to drive out cost reductions.  The 
Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group, Wye Valley NHS Trust and 2gether NHS 
Trust were all facing equally challenging budgetary situations.  All staff needed to be 
focused on the same outcome, which was to change the way people were thinking about 
care needs.   
 
In reply to a further question, she went on to say that the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment would look at the issue of the ageing population of the County and would 
project forward on existing data.  She said that the figures in the budget were based on 
population and census data and were a forecast.  They would also be influenced by the 
implementation of a housing policy that was designed to attract people of working age 
into the County. 
 
The Chief Officer replied to a question by saying that the integrated arrangements with 
the Wye valley Trust had been successful in reducing the number of delayed discharges, 
and this was now one of the best performing indicators for the Trust.  There was, as a 
result, a cost to the Council, as patients were discharged back into their homes earlier 
than had previously been achieved.  Changes to the delivery model would mean that 
these, and similar costs would be delivered through different partnership arrangements 
and integrated services.  The transformation of adult social care services meant that the 
whole Council would need to focus on preventing people reaching the stage of critical 
need.  The Health and Wellbeing Strategy would provide a framework for the services. 
 
A Member suggested that the Scrutiny Review of the Courtyard Centre for the Arts 
undertaken by the Social and Economic Development Scrutiny Committee in 2004 
should be updated, as some of the recommendations from the Review could still be 
relevant.   
 
In reply to a question from a Member regarding whether people in Herefordshire would 
be expected to take out insurance to pay for their care, the Cabinet Member (Health and 
Wellbeing) said that there was no question that the Council would provide care for those 
in need, but she believed that it should also be saying to people that they should be 
planning for their old age.  There was a need to manage demand in a demand driven 

11



 

 

area.   
 
 
Resolved  
 
That: 
 

1 The Committee recommends that Cabinet: 

a) ensures that all statistics used in compiling the budget e.g. the 
population figures, are accurate, timely and used correctly; 

b) ensures that all risks arising from the budget are clearly set out in the 
Risk Register, that the mitigation of the risks are clearly stated and 
includes a plan, with clear timescales and milestones, for addressing 
the risks; 

c) considers introducing into the Budget for 2013/14 a transition fund in 
order to ensure that the necessary transitions/savings are achieved as 
quickly and efficiently as possible 

d) in the light of the fact that over fifty per cent of the recovery plan for 
Social Services for 2012/13 is amber or red, that more focus should be 
placed on the plan in order to ensure greater compliance with the 
Transformation Plan. 

2 The Committee recommends that in developing the Health & Wellbeing 
Strategy the Health & Wellbeing Board should ensure that it takes into 
consideration the wider implications of the various strategic plans for 
example the provision of additional houses through Local Development 
Framework (LDF) and the effect on social care e.g. the additional pressures 
on doctor’s surgeries. 

3 The Committee recommends that full use should be made of the Public 
Health budget in order to promote preventative measures against ill health 
and encourage better and more appropriate use of the Counties facilities, 
including country parks and woodlands 

4 That a regular monitoring report be scheduled into the Committee work 
programme in order to enable the Committee to keep an overview of 
progress against the Risks, planned savings, and pace of transition within 
the remit of the Committee. 

 
The meeting ended at 10.40 am CHAIRMAN 

12



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Health & Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held at Council Chamber - Brockington on 
Thursday 7 February 2013 at 7.00 pm 
  

Present: Councillor JW Millar (Chairman) 
Councillor SJ Robertson (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: PA Andrews, WLS Bowen, JG Lester, MD Lloyd-Hayes, GA Powell 

and J Stone 
 
  
In attendance: Councillor PM Morgan (Cabinet Member, Health and Wellbeing) 
  
Officers: J Jones (Head of Governance), G Dean (Scrutiny Officer), J Rzezniczek (Interim 

Head of Improvement), DJ Penrose (Governance Services), C Wichbold MBE 
(Grants and Partnership Officer) 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors P Bettington, KS Guthrie, JLV Kenyon, 
MJK Cooper and PJ Watts. 
 

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)   
 
There were no named substitutes. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
None. 
 

4. MINUTES   
 
The Minutes of the Meeting of the 11 January 2013 were approved, subject to noting that 
Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes had submitted her apologies. 
 

5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE 
SCRUTINY   
 
There were no suggestions from the public. 
 

6. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC   
 
There were no questions from the public. 
 

7. HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD - GOVERNANCE AND OPERATION   
 
The Committee received a presentation on the Health and Wellbeing Board.  During her 
presentation, the Cabinet Member (Health & Wellbeing) highlighted the following issues: 
 
• That the Board was brought into being by the Health and Social Care Act 2012, which 

would become a statutory Committee of the Council’s on 1 April 2013.  It had been 
meeting in shadow form on a monthly basis since 2011. 
 

• The Membership of the Board. 

13



 

 
• That the Governance and membership was being finalised through a small working 

group with support from the Local Government Association (LGA).  The guidance 
and regulations for the Board was still awaited from the Department of Health. 
 

• The vision and guiding principles for the Board, which had been put together as a 
result of a series of a series of workshops.  
 

• The Strategy for the Board, which would have an impact on the health and wellbeing 
outcomes for the County’s population.  The Strategy linked to other key strategies 
for Herefordshire and would involve a range of partners and partnerships for the 
delivery the three priorities for the Board which were the Sustainability of the Health 
and Social Care System, Demand Management and Crisis Prevention.  Three Lead 
Board members had been identified for each of these priority areas. 
 

• The opportunities for the Health and Wellbeing Board and the future outlook for the 
County as a result of key issues that had been identified in the 2012 Understanding 
Herefordshire Report. 

 
In the ensuing discussion, the following points were raised: 

 
• That whilst there was no representation on the Board from the educational 

community, it was not practicable to have membership from all stakeholders and 
partners.  The Board currently had thirteen members. Rather than adding to the 
number of members, the Cabinet Member believed that it was more important to 
ensure that there was appropriate interaction at an operational level by the Board 
in areas such as education. 
 

In reply to a question from a Member, the Cabinet Member said that whilst the voluntary 
sector was under pressure, it was capable of delivering what was expected of it at Board 
level.  Claire Keech, who represented the sector, was a very able member and also 
received support in her work from the Council.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question, the Grants and Partnership Officer said that  whilst 
organisations such as St Michael’s Hospice might not be represented on the Board, one 
of the care pathways that the Herefordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (HCCG) was 
working on was that of End of Life, and issues would be picked up through their 
involvement with the Board.  In reply to a further question, she went on to say that 
funding from the Community Safety Partnership was allowing positive work to be 
undertaken concerning alcohol abuse.  There was a whole system approach to alcohol 
abuse that ensured that as many partners as possible were involved in addressing the 
issue by way of a ladder of intervention.  The Bottle Top Programme, for example,  
which had been aimed at older students, had now been tasked with parental education, 
as well as alcohol awareness for 12 to 13 year old pupils. 
 
In reply to a further question, the Cabinet Member said that attendance at Board 
meetings had been good.  There had been a great deal of need to learn how the partner 
organisations worked, and what their priorities were.  She believed that as a result of this 
process, the progress that the Health and Wellbeing Board had made was on par with 
other Boards in the region. 
 
• That there was a great deal of variation in the approach that Health and Wellbeing 

Boards had taken to websites, and that work was progressing on providing one for 
Herefordshire’s Board. 

 
In reply to a Member’s question as to whether there would be a monitoring role for the 
Board, the Cabinet Member reiterated that guidance for the Board had not yet been 

14



 

provided by the Department for Health.  It would be necessary, however, to deal with the 
different approaches between Commissioners and Providers. 
 
A Member asked whether there were different strategies to deal with the different life 
expectancies and health issues of different socio-economic groups within the County.  
The Cabinet Member replied that it was up to the three Leads for the three priority areas 
within the strategy as to how the detailed work would be undertaken.  The next iteration 
of the Understanding Herefordshire Report would be brought to the Board. The Board 
had provided direction to the  Joint Strategic Assessment team, and had asked them to 
focus on domestic abuse. 
 
In reply to a question as to how the Board would ensure that the changes it required 
were implemented by the Boards of partner organisations, the Cabinet Member said that 
whilst this was not an issue that had arisen as one of the strengths of the Board was its 
ability to work together.  As the HCCG Commissioning Plans had to be approved by the 
Board, issues of that nature could be addressed at this juncture. 
 
The Chairman asked what support the Health and Wellbeing Board would like from this 
Committee as a result of the recommendations from the report of the Mid Staffordshire 
NHS Foundation Trust Public Inquiry by Robert Francis QC.  The Cabinet Member said 
that the challenge offered by the Committee was beneficial to the work of the Board, and 
that she would expect to be in a better position to answer the question after the Board 
had been operational. 
 
In reply to a question regarding how the outcomes from the Boards actions could be 
measured, the Grants and Partnership Officer said that the Department of Health had 
provided frameworks within the areas of the Health Service, Public Health and Adult 
Social Care with performance indicators against which the performance of the Board 
could be measured. 
 
RESOLVED: That a report on the progress of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
should be provided to the Committee in July 2013. 
 

8. HEALTH WATCH   
 
The Committee received a presentation on Healthwatch from the Interim Independent 
Chairman, Mr Paul Bates.  During his presentation, Mr Bates highlighted the following 
areas: 
 

• That Healthwatch in Herefordshire would be under the aegis of, but not 
responsible to, Healthwatch England, which would provide national leadership, 
guidance and support to local Healthwatch organisations. Healthwatch England 
was a statutory committee of the Care Quality Commission. Healthwatch was 
represented on the Health and Wellbeing Board, its operational work undertaken 
work was to ensure access and signposting for health and social care across the 
County.  Healthwatch would, in the first instance, be accountable to the people of 
Herefordshire. 
 

• That this week was a crucial one for the procurement process for the 
Healthwatch provider, as contracts had been exchanged and were being 
considered. How Healthwatch would be constituted, perhaps as a body 
corporate, a charity or a social enterprise company, would be a matter for the 
appointed provider. 
 

• That there was a certain amount of confusion as to what the changes were 
between the existing LINks and the proposed Healthwatch. Whilst the work and 

15



 

commitment of the volunteers involved with the LINk in Herefordshire had been 
effective, nationally, LINks had not been seen as being successful. 
 

• That whilst Healthwatch would have a right of entry into the premises of providers 
within the County, this was not the reason that it had been created. It was 
important that Healthwatch should be seen to be working with every organisation 
within the health and social care system in the County in a constructive manner, 
and not being confrontational. 
 

• That soft intelligence should be used as part of the alert system when 
considering the performance of health providers, as much as statistical evidence. 
 

In the ensuing discussion, the following points were made: 
 

• That it was not appropriate to consider Healthwatch as a mere extension of LINk.  
There would be places for those who had been involved in LINk if they were 
comfortable with the way that Healthwatch would have to work.  The structure 
and work of Healthwatch would have to be more formal, as there would be 
greater accountability.  Volunteers would need to be trained and accredited in 
some manner. 
 

• That if a situation similar to the one that had arisen around the change of opening 
hours of the Minor Injury Units in Ross and Leominster were to arise again, then 
the public would expect Healthwatch to be effectively involved. 
 

• That staff working for Herefordshire LINk would be moved to Healthwatch under 
Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE). 
 

• That the Committee would expect to work closely with Healthwatch once it was 
operational. 

 
The Chairman thanked Mr Bates for his presentation. 
 
 

9. EXECUTIVE RESPONSE TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK AND FINISH 
GROUP ON CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING IN HEREFORDSHIRE   
 
The Interim Head of Improvement presented a report on the Executive’s response to the 
Task & Finish Review of children’s safeguarding in Herefordshire.  In the ensuing 
discussion, the following points were made: 
 

• That the Executive were not in a position to make the planned series of Members 
Seminar on safeguarding mandatory for all Members.  Dates for the seminars 
would be provided as soon as possible. 
 

• That the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board had put together a 
Contract of Expectation with accommodation providers based in Herefordshire 
which asked them to notify the Council when all out of County placements were 
made with providers. This would be more reliable than obtaining information from 
the placing authorities and pre-empted pending Government action which would 
require accommodation providers to notify local authorities in a similar way. 
 

The Interim Head of Improvement concurred with a Member’s comments that it was 
important that training should be in place to address the IT issues associated with the 
concerns with Frameworki.  The situation had arisen as a result of the high turnover of 
staff. Recent focus had been on stabilising the situation, and  additional IT training was 
in hand. 
 

16



 

 
Resolved: 
 

That: 
 

(a) The contents of the action plan be noted and that the Committee support 
the overall response.  

(b) That the Committee confirm that, given the overlap, updates for progress 
on actions in the Plan are subsumed in the progress reports for the 
Children’s Improvement Plan.  

 
10. WORK PROGRAMME   

 
The Committee noted its Work Programme. 
 
Resolved: That the work programme be noted. 
 

The meeting ended at 9.10 pm CHAIRMAN 

17



18



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

David Penrose, Governance Services on (01432) 383690 

MEETING: HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 22 MARCH 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: WEST MERCIA AMBULANCE NHS FOUNDATION 
TRUST 

REPORT BY:   

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

 

Purpose 

To receive a presentation from the West Mercia Ambulance NHS Foundation Trust. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

19



20



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

David Penrose, Governance Services on (01432) 383690 

MEETING: HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 22 MARCH 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: 2GETHER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST  

REPORT BY:  Chief Executive, 2gether NHS Foundation Trust 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

 

Purpose 

To receive a presentation from the 2gether NHS Foundation Trust.  

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

21



22



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available Jo Davidson, Director for People’s Services 
on Tel: 01432 260039 

 

MEETING: HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 22 MARCH 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: CHILDREN’S SAFEGUARDING - IMPROVEMENT 
NOTICE AND PROGRESS ON THE OFSTED 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

REPORT BY:  DIRECTOR FOR PEOPLE’S SERVICES 
 

1. Classification 

Open 

2. Key Decision 

This is not a key decision. 

3. Wards Affected 

County-wide 

4. Purpose 

To receive a report on the receipt of the Improvement Notice from the Department for 
Education (DfE) and progress to date on the Ofsted recommendations and next steps. 

5. Recommendation(s) 

 THAT The Committee: 

a) notes the Improvement Notice from the Department of Education. 

b) notes the statement of expectation for children’s safeguarding in 
Herefordshire and for further discussion and potential endorsement by 
partners. 

c) notes the progress to date in addressing the recommendations from 
Ofsted. 

6. Key Points Summary 

• As reported in the autumn, following the Ofsted Inspection of local authority arrangements for 
the protection of children, Herefordshire has been placed under an Improvement Notice by the 
DfE. 

• This notice has now been received.  This gives the Council the opportunity to accept the 
notice, confirm its expectation for safeguarding services and endorse the improvement plan 
which is in place.  

AGENDA ITEM 9

23



 

7. Alternative Options 

7.1 There are no viable alternative options. 

8. Reasons for Recommendations 

8.1 The Council is under a duty to accept the Improvement Notice from the DfE and address the 
requirement to improve the quality of services and impact on children’s outcomes. 

9. Introduction and Background 

Improvement Notice 

9.1 Following the Ofsted inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children in 
the Autumn, the Council was graded inadequate.  As part of the response to this, the DfE has 
set out an Improvement Notice.  The Council received the Final Improvement Notice on 
Thursday 14 February (Appendix 1). 

9.2 The Notice has been developed with the Council and Improvement Board and the DfE and 
sets out the key areas of action which we have agreed are essential to secure good child 
protection services within the next two years. 

9.3 One of the requirements of the Improvement Notice is a statement of expectation by the 
Council for safeguarding services in exercise of its lead role for Safeguarding (Appendix 2) 
and a plan of action (Appendix 3).  

10. Key Considerations 

The Statement of Expectation 

10.1 The Council has not previously confirmed its expectation for safeguarding, but has placed its 
ambitions within its vision for children and young people in Herefordshire.  The Council has a 
clear leadership role for Herefordshire in setting these expectations.  Partners have indicated 
they would welcome such a statement and would wish to consider this and that there is a set 
of expectations within Herefordshire by all organisations. 

10.2 Cabinet are asked to endorse the statement at Appendix 2.  The statement is wholly in line 
with the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Corporate Plan.  Once endorsed, the 
statement will be taken to the Boards of the relevant partners agencies for consideration.  This 
may mean some changes are suggested, and it is proposed it is delegated to the Director for 
People’s Services to finalise the statement by the end of June, should there be any changes 

10.3 It is also suggested that the Director for People’s Services be asked to work with Children in 
Care and the Shadow Children’s Board to ensure that the statement is easily understood by 
and communicated to children and young people. 

The Improvement Plan 

10.4 The Improvement Plan has been developed since November.  The executive summary is 
attached at Appendix 3.  The Full Improvement Plan can be accessed as a background paper 
from a link attached to this agenda item on the Council’s website.  The Plan is a live document 
as the learning from implementing the plan is built into it. 

24



 

10.5 There has been very active engagement by staff from a number of organisations in this first 
phase of improvement and credit should be given to them for the intensive work which has 
been done. 

10.6 Monitoring of the plan and challenging of progress is undertaken at workstream meetings 
which happen at least monthly at present and the Improvement Board which also meets 
monthly.  As it improves, the Safeguarding Board will gradually take over the role of the 
Improvement Board.  The Council activities and performance are monitored on a weekly basis 
by managers, and then monthly through the senior management and cabinet arrangements, 
culminating in the quarterly performance report.  This frequency alters if there are significant 
performance concerns.  The quality assurance and performance monitoring arrangements are 
themselves under review to ensure that staff and managers have access to performance and 
quality information on a much more developed basis. 

Progress to Date 

10.7 The Ofsted report contained a number of recommendations for immediate three and six month 
actions.  A progress report is attached at Appendix 4. 

10.8 It has been well rehearsed that whilst it is possible to action all the recommendations, they 
cannot be considered completed until the actions are clearly embedded as evidenced through 
day to day practice, systematic implementation and confirmed through audit.  Furthermore, the 
ultimate test will be considering the impact these actions are having on the experience of 
children and families and their outcomes.  Whilst it is pleasing therefore to be able to report 
that all the recommendations have been actioned, there is still a significant way to go until 
there can be confidence that there has been a corresponding improvement in practice and 
outcomes. 

10.9 Staff and managers have worked exceptionally hard over the past three months.  The 
priorities have been: 

• undertaking an audit of 1,440 cases and responding to findings 

• investing in more staff and supporting our teams 

• addressing performance issues and identifying good and outstanding practice 

• refreshing and developing approaches to practices 

At the same time as this, the child protection teams have seen a rise in activity so have been 
dealing with an increase in workload and addressing performance issues.  This has placed a 
strain on those teams. 

10.10 The biggest risk to improvement is having a stable experienced workforce.  Since Ofsted, the 
staffing position has changed, so that there are now more agency staff than there were when 
Ofsted inspected.  This is a common experience in authorities in intervention, through a 
combination of increased number of cases being referred, leading to a growth in staff needed 
and staff turnover.  Although we have many high quality agency staff, this creates a 
destabilising effect in its own right, on both permanent staff, partners and families.  The 
Council has agreed a recruitment package and a national recruitment campaign started on 13 
February.  Competition between authorities for high calibre staff is very high.   

10.11 Equally important are the retention arrangements; the Council has been developing its career 
structures and professional development and support arrangements.  We have many excellent 
staff in Herefordshire and we want to ensure they are supported and challenged to perform 

25



 

their best.  Although there is much the Council needs to do, staff also need to be able to 
establish effective and enduring professional relationships with staff throughout the 
safeguarding system.  The Safeguarding Board will want to consider what the stability and 
effectiveness of staffing is in all organisations over the course of the next few months. 

10.12 The influx of work combined with dealing with backlogs has seen a significant increase in 
assessments done.  There is some pleasing evidence of improvements in the performance 
around visits and the speed with which assessments are undertaken although not yet at 
target.  The revised team arrangements which have been put in place will improve the position 
in the next three month period; the teams are also focusing on the improvements in quality 
which has to go hand in hand with this. 

Other Developments  

10.13 The Council and its partners have also had an inspection of the Fostering Service.  The 
outcomes are yet to be verified but are positive.  There is some clear evidence of actions 
taken since the Ofsted inspection, beginning to take effect.  What is equally clear is the 
collation of performance and quality data and analysis by managers to identify themes and 
take action is still requiring development work not just by the Council, but by other partners 
also. 

10.14 Risk and Resilience training has been received very favourably, which bodes well for a more 
systematic collective understanding of risk and response to it, which is a key plank of the 
Improvement Plan. 

Conclusion 

10.15 Significant activity and investment has taken place since the inspection in September.  Whilst 
we cannot be assured about systemic improvements until the staffing situation is more stable, 
the groundwork and preparation which is being undertaken enable us to improve practice 
meanwhile. 

11. Community Impact 

11.1 An effective approach to child protection ensures children are not placed at risk and are 
protected from harm.  This plan is designed to secure this.  

12. Equality and Human Rights 

12.1 The improvement work will pay due regard to our public sector equality duty. 

13. Financial Implications 

13.1 For 2012/13 funds have been made available through the People’s Services directorate 
contingency budget (£50k) and additional one off funding from the regional and national 
improvement boards which have covered the initial case audit and some interim staffing costs. 

13.2 In setting the Children’s Safeguarding budget for 2013/14 an estimate of the recurrent 
additional costs required to invest in and develop the social care workforce has been made 
and an additional £650k allowed within the FRM to cover the additional costs.  The final 
staffing structure is still under development and will require financial evaluation as part of the 
sign off process. 

26



 

13.3 Critical to delivering the workforce improvement within the financial budget is the recruitment 
of a permanent experienced workforce quickly to minimise the additional costs incurred from 
the employment of agency / interim staff.  Staffing has to be in place in service areas, including 
business support and the use of agency inevitably increases the costs to the Council.  The 
Council is addressing this through a revised package for recruitment and retention. 

14. Legal Implications 

14.1 Currently there are no legal implications. 

15. Risk Management 

15.1 The risks are: 

• Inability to secure stable experienced workforce leads to ineffective safeguarding services 
which leave children at risk of harm. 

• The financial consequences mean early help services are not available leading to more 
costly arrangements. 

• These are included in the directorate and corporate risk register.  The Improvement Notice 
and Plan are mechanisms to mitigate the risk. 

• There are reputational risks to the council if progress is not achieved.  This is mitigated 
through the work of the Improvement Board and Improvement Plan. 

16. Consultees 

16.1 Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Improvement Board. 

17. Appendices 

17.1 Appendix 1 - Improvement Notice 

 Appendix 2 - Ambition Statement 

 Appendix 3 - Executive Summary of the Improvement Plan 

 Appendix 4 - Progress Report  

18. Background Papers 

18.1 Herefordshire‘s Ofsted Report. 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



 

  
 
 
 

OUR EXPECTATIONS FOR SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN 
 
 
 

We want every child and young person to grow up happy, healthy and safe, 
brought up by supportive families and carers and living in caring communities 
with plenty of opportunities for both learning and other activities.  
 
To achieve this, we want: 
 

• Every family to take responsibility themselves for protecting their 
children. 

 
• High quality universal services and thriving communities supporting 

every child and family so they rarely need extra support. 
 

• Parents and carers to be able to get support from integrated  early help 
services and approaches, which  respond when concerns first emerge 
no matter where families access that support from. 
 

• Specialised integrated safeguarding services of the highest quality, 
using the most up to date practice tools, evidence and management 
information, so the basics are done extraordinarily well and problems 
are quickly identified and resolved.  
 

• A workforce which is supported, stable, well qualified, talented, 
confident, creative and highly regarded.  
 

• Views and experiences of children and families  at the heart of service 
development, practice and strategic thinking. 

 
What success looks like: 
 

• Children regularly reporting: 
 

o I know who to talk to and I am listened to 
o I feel I am getting the help I need 
o I am protected from harm 
o I am helped by people who know what they are doing 
o My family are getting the help they need 

 
• Performance and children’s outcomes are in the top quartile nationally 

and in the top three against statistical neighbours. We want to be the 
best we can be. 
 

• Internal and external judgements scoring consistently against the 
Ofsted “Good” criteria. 

 

35



To achieve this expectation, we are: 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Improving our Leadership and Governance 

 
Ensuring improving children’s outcomes are 

actively championed 

 
Improving our engagement with staff and 

families and communicating better 

 
Developing our 

workforce and our 
practice 

 
Recruiting and 

retaining the best 
staff 

 
Using effective 
evidence based 
practice tools 

 
 

Understanding the 
Child’s Journey 

 
Focusing on the 
basic practice 
standards 

 
Strengthening our multi-agency arrangements 

 
Developing and implementing a multi-agency 

safeguarding hub 

 
Becoming a high performing, effective 

Safeguarding Children Board 

 
Ensuring we have services which meet needs 

and are of high quality and impact 

 
Strategy and developing our needs analysis, 

commissioning for better outcomes 

 
Improving effectiveness by strengthening 

performance management and quality assurance 

36



 

1 
14

/0
3/

20
13

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 S

up
po

rt
in

g 
an

d 
Pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

Ch
ild

re
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

 

 Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

 V2
.2

 

  

37



 

2 
14

/0
3/

20
13

 

O
ut

lin
e 

an
d 

co
nt

ex
t 

 Fo
llo

w
in

g 
on

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
ce

nt
 O

fs
te

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

(S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
2)

, t
hi

s 
pl

an
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
od

uc
ed

 to
 b

rin
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 Q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 2
01

2-
13

 a
nd

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
Ch

ild
re

n 
Bo

ar
d 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 P
la

n 
20

12
-1

3,
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 b

y 
O

fs
te

d.
 O

ur
 a

im
 is

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 C

hi
ld

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

pr
ac

tic
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ar
e 

go
od

, a
nd

 s
ta

ff
 in

 e
ve

ry
 a

ge
nc

y,
 a

t e
ve

ry
 le

ve
l, 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 
en

su
re

 th
is

.  
 T

he
 p

la
n 

se
ts

 o
ut

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
un

de
rl

yi
ng

 c
au

se
s 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

be
in

g 
sa

fe
 a

re
 im

pa
ct

ed
 o

n 
by

 a
ll 

si
de

s 
of

 th
e 

sy
st

em
, f

ro
m

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

to
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

ho
ld

in
g 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 b

et
w

ee
n 

po
lic

y,
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g.

 
  Th

e 
Pl

an
 id

en
tif

ie
s 

th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 r
eq

ui
re

d,
 a

nd
 th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ea
su

rin
g,

 in
 th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. W

e 
w

ill
 e

nh
an

ce
: 

• 
Th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f p

ra
ct

ic
e 

• 
Th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 h

el
p 

an
d 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 c
hi

ld
re

n,
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 c
ar

er
s 

• 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

• 
M

ul
ti 

ag
en

cy
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 in

te
gr

at
io

n 

• 
O

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ili

es
. 

 It
 is

 im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

no
te

 th
at

 th
is

 p
la

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 r

el
at

e 
to

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
lit

y 
of

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 c
hi

ld
re

n,
 a

s 
th

e 
va

st
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f o
ur

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
ar

e 
sa

fe
, 

bu
t i

s 
pa

rt
 o

f a
 n

ar
ra

tiv
e 

in
di

ca
tin

g 
ou

r p
ri

or
ity

 o
f i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
Ch

ild
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
pr

ac
tic

es
. 

 Th
e 

Pl
an

 w
ill

 ta
ck

le
 th

e 
ar

ea
s 

of
 g

re
at

es
t r

is
k 

fir
st

 a
nd

 la
y 

th
e 

fo
un

da
tio

ns
 fo

r 
m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
on

ito
ri

ng
 ta

rg
et

s 
se

t 
ou

t i
n 

th
e 

pl
an

 a
nd

 c
he

ck
in

g 
th

at
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 e

m
be

dd
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 a
nd

 s
cr

ut
in

y.
 

 Th
e 

pl
an

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
an

 u
nw

av
er

in
g 

fo
cu

s 
on

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

ra
pi

d 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 n

ee
de

d 
in

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 c

hi
ld

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
th

ei
r f

am
ili

es
. W

ith
 th

is
 in

 m
in

d,
 th

e 
ai

m
s 

an
d 

ou
tc

om
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
of

 th
is

 p
la

n 
ar

e 
ch

ild
-c

en
tr

ed
. 

 

38



 

3 
14

/0
3/

20
13

 

Th
e 

pl
an

 is
 a

 li
vi

ng
 d

oc
um

en
t a

nd
 is

 re
vi

ew
ed

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t B
oa

rd
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 th
is

, p
ro

gr
es

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

by
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r a

nd
 D

CS
 o

n 
a 

bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
ba

si
s 

 Th
e 

pl
an

 is
 li

nk
ed

 to
 T

he
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 L
ev

el
s 

of
 N

ee
d 

Pa
th

w
ay

 b
el

ow
. 

 
 

39



 

4 
14

/0
3/

20
13

 

Pr
io

ri
ty

 A
im

s 

• 
I a

m
 s

af
e 

an
d 

ha
pp

y 

• 
I a

m
 h

ea
lth

y 
an

d 
w

el
l 

• 
I e

nj
oy

 li
fe

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 lo
ts

 to
 d

o 
an

d 
le

ar
n 

O
ut

co
m

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

• 
I k

no
w

 w
ho

 to
 ta

lk
 to

 a
nd

 I 
am

 li
st

en
ed

 to
 

• 
I f

ee
l I

 a
m

 g
et

tin
g 

th
e 

he
lp

 I 
ne

ed
 

• 
I a

m
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 fr
om

 h
ar

m
 

• 
I a

m
 h

el
pe

d 
by

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 k
no

w
 w

ha
t t

he
y 

ar
e 

do
in

g 

• 
M

y 
fa

m
ily

 a
re

 g
et

tin
g 

th
e 

he
lp

 th
ey

 n
ee

d 
 Ev

id
en

ce
 fo

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 
1.
 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
r a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

 
2.
 

Co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n,

 a
ud

it,
 s

ur
ve

ys
 

3.
 

Ch
ild

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

(C
P)

 d
at

a,
 a

ud
it,

 L
oo

ke
d 

A
ft

er
 C

hi
ld

 (L
A

C)
 d

at
a 

4.
 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 d

at
a,

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

, q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e,
 c

ar
ee

r p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t (
CP

D
) d

at
a 

5.
 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

da
ta

, m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 d
at

a 
au

di
t 

A
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

to
 th

is
 e

ff
ec

t.
 

 
Re

fe
re

nc
e 

ke
y 

A
A

1:
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 2

01
2-

20
13

 –
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
A

A
2:

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
– 

pr
io

ri
ty

 li
st

 v
3 

A
A

3:
 

A
re

as
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t b
as

ed
 o

n 
ob

se
rv

at
io

ns
 o

f O
fs

te
d 

ju
dg

m
en

ts
 

A
A

4:
 

A
ud

it 
of

 c
as

es
 –

 A
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 fi
na

l s
ub

m
itt

ed
 v

2 
A

A
5:

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
Ch

ild
re

n 
Bo

ar
d 

(H
SC

B)
 B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 2
01

2-
13

 
A

A
6:

   
 O

fs
te

d 
re

po
rt

: I
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

ri
ty

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
A

A
7:

 
Ke

ep
in

g 
Ch

ild
re

n 
Sa

fe
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

40



 

5 
14

/0
3/

20
13

 

 T
he

 o
ut

co
m

es
 a

re
 R

A
G

 ra
te

d 
an

d 
th

e 
de

sc
rip

to
rs

 a
re

 o
ut

lin
ed

 in
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ta
bl

e:
 

R
A
G
 ta

bl
e 

R
E
D
 

T
as
ks
 a
nd
 o
r 
ou

tc
om

es
 h
av
e 
no
t b
ee

n 
m
et
 o
r 
tim

es
ca
le
 s
lip
pe
d.
 

A
M
B
E
R
 

T
as
ks
 a
nd
 o
ut
co
m
es
 a
re
 o
n 
tr
ac
k,
 m
ile
st
on
es
 m

et
 b
ut
 n
ot
 c
om

pl
et
ed
. 

G
R
E
E
N
 

T
as
ks
 a
nd
 o
ut
co
m
es
 a
re
 c
om

pl
et
ed
 o
r 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 is
 o
n 
ta
rg
et
. 

G
R
E
Y
 

N
ot
 y
et
 s
ta
rt
ed
 

B
LU

E
 

C
om

pl
et
ed
  

 A
ct

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

ep
ar

at
ed

 in
to

 w
or

k 
st

re
am

s.
 T

he
se

 a
re

 c
ol

ou
r-

co
de

d 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 

Pr
ac

tic
e 

Co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

H
SC

B 
LA

C 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 
Q

A
 

M
A

SH
 

St
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
       

41



42



A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 4
 

 O
fs
te
d
 R
ec
o
m
m
en
d
at
io
n
 

A
ct
io
n
 

P
ro
g
re
ss
 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
1 
re
qu
ire
d,
 a
n 
au
di
t o
f 

al
l c
as
es
 c
lo
se
d 
in
 th
e 
la
st
 3
 m
on
th
s 
an
d 

to
 r
is
k 
as
se
ss
 a
ll 
cu
rr
en
t c
as
es
; e
ns
ur
in
g 

th
is
 le
ad
s 
to
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
 a
ct
io
n 
to
 p
ro
te
ct
 

ch
ild
re
n 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y.
 

 

A
n 
in
de
pe
nd
en
t 
au
di
t 
of
 a
ll 
1,
40
0 
ca
se
s,
 u
si
ng
 O
F
S
T
E
D
 c
rit
er
ia
 

w
as
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t i
n 
N
ov
em
be
r 
20
12
 to
 J
an
ua
ry
 2
01
3.
   
K
ey
 th
em
es
 

fo
un
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
au
di
t 
m
irr
or
 
th
os
e 
fo
un
d 
in
 
th
e 
O
fs
te
d 

in
sp
ec
tio
n 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
fr
on
tli
ne
 m
an
ag
em
en
t d
ec
is
io
n 
an
d 
ov
er
si
gh
t; 

el
ig
ib
ili
ty
 f
or
 s
er
vi
ce
; l
ac
k 
of
 a
na
ly
si
s 
or
 e
nq
ui
ry
; s
up
er
vi
si
on
 s
ki
lls
; 

in
te
ra
ge
nc
y 
w
or
ki
ng
, c
as
ew
or
k 
pr
ac
tic
e 
an
d 
re
co
rd
in
g.
   
 

T
he
 s
um
m
ar
y 
re
po
rt
 g
iv
es
 a
 g
oo
d 
ba
se
lin
e 
po
si
tio
n 
an
d 
w
ill
 le
ad
 

to
 f
ur
th
er
 i
m
pr
ov
em
en
t 
ac
tio
ns
. 
Im
m
ed
ia
te
 a
ct
io
n 
on
 i
nd
iv
id
ua
l 

ca
se
s 
ha
s 
be
en
 t
ak
en
 a
nd
 i
nd
iv
id
ua
l 
m
em
be
rs
 o
f 
st
af
f 
ha
ve
 h
ad
 

fe
ed
ba
ck
. 
A
s 
an
tic
ip
at
ed
, 
th
e 
au
di
t 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
a 
ra
ng
e 
of
 q
ua
lit
y 
of
 

pr
ac
tic
e 
ra
ng
in
g 
fr
om
 i
na
de
qu
at
e 
to
 o
ut
st
an
di
ng
. 
 A
ct
io
ns
 i
n 
th
e 

Im
pr
ov
em
en
t 
P
la
n 
ar
e 
al
re
ad
y 
ad
dr
es
si
ng
 a
re
as
 f
ou
nd
 b
y 
th
e 

in
sp
ec
tio
n 
an
d 
th
is
 a
ud
it,
 w
ith
 t
he
 a
im
 o
f 
en
su
rin
g 
al
l 
pr
ac
tic
e 

be
co
m
es
 a
t l
ea
st
 g
oo
d.
   

A
s 
pa
rt
 o
f 
ou
r 
im
pr
ov
em
en
t 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
a 
co
m
pr
eh
en
si
ve
 a
ud
it 

pl
an
 i
s 
in
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
B
oa
rd
. 
 T
hi
s 
w
ill
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
 r
ob
us
t 
qu
al
ity
 a
ss
ur
an
ce
 

fr
am
ew
or
k 
is
 in
 p
la
ce
 a
nd
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t, 
le
ad
in
g 
to
 r
ef
le
ct
io
n 
on
 a
nd
 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t 
of
 o
ut
co
m
es
 f
or
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
yo
un
g 
pe
op
le
, 
w
ith
 

le
ar
ni
ng
 in
fo
rm
in
g 
im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
 in
 p
ra
ct
ic
e.
   

T
he
 
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en
 fu
lly
 a
ct
io
ne
d.
 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
2 
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
hi
ld
 

pr
ot
ec
tio
n 
gu
id
an
ce
 is
 fo
llo
w
ed
 fo
r 
al
l 

st
ra
te
gy
 d
is
cu
ss
io
ns
 a
nd
 S
47
 (
ch
ild
 

pr
ot
ec
tio
n)
 e
nq
ui
rie
s.
  

 M
ul
ti-
ag
en
cy
 
w
or
ks
ho
ps
 
w
ith
 
fr
on
tli
ne
 
pr
ac
tit
io
ne
rs
 
an
d 

m
an
ag
er
s,
 h
av
e 
ta
ke
n 
pl
ac
e 
to
 a
gr
ee
 a
 c
on
si
st
en
t 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 t
o 

st
ra
te
gy
 
di
sc
us
si
on
s,
 
st
ra
te
gy
 
m
ee
tin
gs
 
an
d 
ch
ild
 
pr
ot
ec
tio
n 

en
qu
iri
es
.  
   

P
ro
ce
du
re
s 
un
de
rp
in
ni
ng
 th
is
 n
ew
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
ar
e 
w
rit
te
n 
an
d 
be
in
g 

im
pl
em
en
te
d.
 

T
hi
s 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en
 fu
lly
 a
ct
io
ne
d 
 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
3 
re
qu
ire
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
re
sh
ol
ds
 fo
r 
ch
ild
 

T
he
 a
ct
io
n 
ta
ke
n 
is
 th
e 
sa
m
e 
as
 in
 r
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
2 

T
hi
s 
ac
tio
n 
ha
s 
be
en
 
fu
lly
 

43



A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 4
 

pr
ot
ec
tio
n 
en
qu
iri
es
 a
re
 c
on
si
st
en
tly
 a
nd
 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
ly
 a
pp
lie
d,
 le
ad
in
g 
to
 s
ou
nd
 

as
se
ss
m
en
t o
f r
is
k 
an
d 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
sh
ar
in
g.
 

ac
tio
ne
d.
 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
4 
  r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 le
ga
l a
dv
ic
e 
is
 

co
ns
is
te
nt
ly
 s
ou
gh
t i
n 
a 
tim
el
y 
w
ay
 a
nd
 

th
at
 th
is
 le
ad
s 
to
 ti
m
el
y 
le
ga
l p
la
nn
in
g 

m
ee
tin
gs
 a
nd
 in
te
rv
en
tio
ns
.  
 

M
in
ut
es
 o
f 
pr
ev
io
us
 m
ee
tin
gs
 h
av
e 
be
en
 r
ev
ie
w
ed
 t
o 
en
su
re
 t
ha
t 

al
l p
re
vi
ou
s 
re
sp
on
se
s 
w
er
e 
tim
el
y 
an
d 
th
at
 t
he
re
 w
er
e 
no
 c
as
es
 

la
ck
in
g 
a 
tim
el
y 
re
sp
on
se
. 
 F
ur
th
er
 t
ra
in
in
g 
fo
r 
fr
on
tli
ne
 s
ta
ff 
an
d 

m
an
ag
er
s 
on
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
ts
 r
el
at
ed
 t
o 
th
e 
F
am
ily
 J
us
tic
e 
R
ev
ie
w
, 

w
as
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
n 
on
 1
4t
h  
F
eb
ru
ar
y,
 2
01
3.
 T
he
 S
er
vi
ce
 M
an
ag
er
 o
f 

th
e 
P
la
nn
in
g 
an
d 
R
ev
ie
w
 t
ea
m
 w
ill
 p
ro
vi
de
 t
ra
in
in
g 
on
 t
he
 F
am
ily
 

an
d 
F
rie
nd
s 
an
d 
C
on
ne
ct
ed
 p
er
so
ns
 g
ui
da
nc
e.
   

A
ll 
P
ub
lic
 L
aw
 O
ut
lin
e 
ca
se
s 
ar
e 
cl
ea
rly
 t
ra
ck
ed
 a
nd
 t
he
 L
eg
al
 

P
la
nn
in
g 
P
an
el
 h
av
e 
a 
m
ax
im
um
 s
ta
nd
ar
d 
pe
rio
d 
of
 n
o 
lo
ng
er
 

th
an
 4
 m
on
th
s 
fo
r 
a 
ch
ild
 to
 b
e 
in
 th
e 
le
ga
l p
la
nn
in
g 
ph
as
e.
  

Le
ga
l p
la
nn
in
g 
pa
ne
ls
 a
re
 n
ow
 h
ap
pe
ni
ng
 o
n 
a 
w
ee
kl
y 
ra
th
er
 th
an
 

fo
rt
ni
gh
tly
 b
as
is
, 
an
d 
st
af
f 
ar
e 
aw
ar
e 
th
at
 e
m
er
ge
nc
y 
pa
ne
ls
 c
an
 

al
so
 b
e 
he
ld
 a
t 
sh
or
t 
no
tic
e 
to
 a
vo
id
 a
ny
 u
nn
ec
es
sa
ry
 d
el
ay
s.
  
A
ll 

st
af
f 
ha
ve
 
be
en
 
re
m
in
de
d 
of
 
th
e 
ne
ed
 
to
 
be
 
tim
el
y,
 
an
d 

am
en
dm
en
ts
 h
av
e 
be
en
 m
ad
e 
to
 l
eg
al
 p
la
nn
in
g 
pr
oc
es
se
s 
to
 

tig
ht
en
 u
p 
de
ci
si
on
 m
ak
in
g 
an
d 
tim
es
ca
le
s 
fo
r 
ac
tio
n 

T
hi
s 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en
 fu
lly
 a
ct
io
ne
d 
 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
5 
re
qu
ire
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
in
 n
ee
d 

an
d 
th
os
e 
su
bj
ec
t t
o 
ch
ild
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 

en
qu
iri
es
 a
re
 v
is
ite
d 
re
gu
la
rly
 b
y 
so
ci
al
 

w
or
ke
rs
. 

F
ro
nt
lin
e 
m
an
ag
er
s 
no
w
 h
av
e 
ac
ce
ss
 t
o 
da
ily
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
al
er
tin
g 

th
em
 t
o 
w
he
n 
vi
si
ts
 a
re
 d
ue
 r
el
at
ed
 t
o 
ch
ild
re
n 
su
bj
ec
t 
to
 c
hi
ld
 

pr
ot
ec
tio
n 
pl
an
s 
an
d 
lo
ok
ed
 
af
te
r 
ch
ild
re
n.
 
 
A
 
F
ra
m
ew
or
ki
 

m
ec
ha
ni
sm
 f
or
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
ho
w
 o
fte
n 
ch
ild
re
n 
ar
e 
se
en
 b
et
w
ee
n 

th
e 
in
iti
at
io
n 
of
 a
 c
hi
ld
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
co
nc
er
n 
an
d 
a 
ch
ild
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 

co
nf
er
en
ce
 t
ak
in
g 
pl
ac
e 
is
 i
n 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t, 
w
ith
 m
an
ua
l 
sy
st
em
s 

be
in
g 
us
ed
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
.  
 

T
he
se
 n
ew
 s
ys
te
m
s 
te
ll 
us
 t
ha
t 
in
 J
an
ua
ry
, 
20
13
 4
9.
5%
 o
f 
al
l 

re
fe
rr
ed
 c
as
es
 h
ad
 a
 v
is
it 
w
ith
in
 5
 w
or
ki
ng
 d
ay
s.
   

T
he
 s
ys
te
m
 w
ill
 b
e 
fu
rt
he
r 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
to
 r
ep
or
t 
on
 f
re
qu
en
cy
 o
f 

pr
e-
ch
ild
 
pr
ot
ec
tio
n 
pl
an
 
vi
si
ts
 
fo
r 
ch
ild
re
n 
su
bj
ec
t 
to
 
C
hi
ld
 

T
hi
s 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en
 
fu
lly
 
ac
tio
ne
d.
 
 
D
ue
 
to
 

th
e 

si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 

ad
di
tio
na
l 

w
or
kl
oa
d 
fr
om
 
S
ep
te
m
be
r 
to
 

N
ov
em
be
r 
20
12
, 
it 
w
as
 
no
t 

po
ss
ib
le
 
to
 
en
ha
nc
e 

th
e 

re
gu
la
rit
y 
of
 v
is
its
 im
m
ed
ia
te
ly
.  

N
ew
 

en
ha
nc
ed
 

te
am
 

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 a
re
 i
n 
pl
ac
e 
in
 

th
e 
F
A
S
T
 t
ea
m
 w
hi
ch
 i
s 
no
w
 

ev
id
en
ci
ng
 im
pr
ov
em
en
t 

44



A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 4
 

P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
P
la
ns
 a
nd
 t
he
 la
st
 t
hr
ee
 m
on
th
s 
in
di
ca
te
 a
n 
im
pr
ov
in
g 

tr
en
d 
fo
llo
w
in
g 
a 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 d
ip
 i
n 
N
ov
em
be
r 
20
12
. 
 T
he
 c
ur
re
nt
 

pe
rc
en
ta
ge
 o
f 
ch
ild
re
n 
se
en
 w
ith
in
 3
0 
da
ys
 o
f 
a 
sn
ap
sh
ot
 e
nd
 o
f 

m
on
th
 d
at
e 
is
 5
5.
9%
 (
Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
13
).
  
M
ul
ti-
ag
en
cy
 w
or
ks
ho
ps
 

ha
ve
 r
ei
nf
or
ce
d 
th
e 
im
po
rt
an
ce
 o
f 
th
is
 p
ra
ct
ic
e.
 S
oc
ia
l 
W
or
ke
rs
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
re
m
in
de
d 
of
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
, 
re
in
fo
rc
ed
 b
y 
si
m
pl
ifi
ca
tio
n 

of
 r
ec
or
di
ng
 a
nd
 r
ep
or
tin
g 
in
 F
w
i. 
M
an
ag
er
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
ta
sk
ed
 

w
ith
 fo
cu
si
ng
 o
n 
im
pr
ov
em
en
t i
n 
su
pe
rv
is
io
n 
an
d 
te
am
 m
ee
tin
gs
. 

V
is
its
 i
n 
ot
he
r 
so
ci
al
 w
or
k 
te
am
s 
ar
e 
im
pr
ov
in
g 
m
on
th
 o
n 
m
on
th
 

an
d 
ar
e 
ve
ry
 c
lo
se
 to
 ta
rg
et
.  
 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
6 
re
qu
ire
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 in
te
r-
ag
en
cy
 

th
re
sh
ol
ds
 fo
r 
st
at
ut
or
y 
in
te
rv
en
tio
n 
ar
e 

un
de
rs
to
od
 a
nd
 a
pp
lie
d 
by
 a
ll 
ag
en
ci
es
, 

le
ad
in
g 
to
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
th
ei
r 
fa
m
ili
es
 

re
ce
iv
in
g 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 a
nd
 ti
m
el
y 
se
rv
ic
es
 

in
 a
cc
or
da
nc
e 
w
ith
 th
ei
r 
as
se
ss
ed
. 

T
hi
s 
is
 b
ei
ng
 a
dd
re
ss
ed
 th
ro
ug
h 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 a
re
as
 o
f a
ct
iv
ity
. T
he
 

Le
ve
ls
 o
f 
N
ee
d 
do
cu
m
en
t 
ha
s 
be
en
 w
id
el
y 
ci
rc
ul
at
ed
 a
nd
 u
se
d 
in
 

a 
va
rie
ty
 o
f 
si
ng
le
 a
nd
 m
ul
ti-
ag
en
cy
 t
ra
in
in
g 
fo
r 
so
m
e 
tim
e.
 T
o 

en
su
re
 a
nd
 d
em
on
st
ra
te
 a
 c
on
si
st
en
tly
 h
ig
h 
le
ve
l 
of
 c
om
m
on
 

un
de
rs
ta
nd
in
g 
ac
ro
ss
 a
ll 
ag
en
ci
es
 w
ill
 o
nl
y 
be
 a
ch
ie
ve
d 
ov
er
 a
 

lo
ng
er
 ti
m
e 
sc
al
e 
th
an
 s
et
 o
ut
 in
 th
e 
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n.
 T
he
 Q
ua
lit
y 

A
ss
ur
an
ce
 s
ub
-g
ro
up
 o
f 
th
e 
H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
C
hi
ld
re
n 

B
oa
rd
 (
H
S
C
B
) 
is
 e
st
ab
lis
hi
ng
 a
 r
ig
or
ou
s 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
of
 S
in
gl
e 

ag
en
cy
 
re
vi
ew
s 
an
d 
au
di
ts
 
re
po
rt
in
g 
ba
ck
 
to
 
th
e 
H
S
C
B
. 
A
 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
of
 
th
em
ed
 
m
ul
ti-
ag
en
cy
 
au
di
ts
 
w
ill
 
te
st
 
co
m
m
on
 

un
de
rs
ta
nd
in
g 
an
d 
ap
pl
ic
at
io
n 
of
 L
ev
el
s 
of
 N
ee
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
C
A
F
, 

C
IN
 a
nd
 C
P
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
. 
T
he
 H
S
C
B
 t
ra
in
in
g 
st
ra
te
gy
 i
s 
be
in
g 

am
en
de
d 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 u
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
 o
f '
Le
ve
ls
 o
f N
ee
d'
 is
 a
 k
ey
 

pr
io
rit
y 
in
 a
ll 
sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
 tr
ai
ni
ng
. 

T
hi
s 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en
 fu
lly
 a
ct
io
ne
d.
   

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
7 
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 im
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
qu
al
ity
 a
nd
 

co
ns
is
te
nc
y 
of
 m
an
ag
em
en
t o
ve
rs
ig
ht
 

an
d 
de
ci
si
on
 m
ak
in
g 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 

ch
ild
’s
 e
xp
er
ie
nc
e,
 r
is
k 
an
d 
th
ei
r 
ne
ed
s 

ar
e 
w
el
l c
on
si
de
re
d,
 a
nd
 le
ad
 to
 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 a
nd
 ti
m
el
y 
ac
tio
n.
   

 

E
xt
er
na
l 
co
ac
hi
ng
 
an
d 
m
en
to
rin
g 
w
as
 
de
liv
er
ed
 
to
 
fr
on
tli
ne
 

m
an
ag
er
s 
du
rin
g 
N
ov
em
be
r 
an
d 
D
ec
em
be
r 
ah
ea
d 
of
 
th
e 

in
tr
od
uc
tio
n 
of
 a
 f
ur
th
er
 p
ro
fe
ss
io
na
l d
ev
el
op
m
en
t 
fr
am
ew
or
k 
an
d 

su
pp
or
t 
in
 p
la
ce
 s
o 
th
at
 it
 c
an
 b
e 
de
liv
er
ed
 t
o 
fr
on
tli
ne
 m
an
ag
er
s 

as
 th
ey
 a
re
 r
ec
ru
ite
d 
to
 th
e 
au
th
or
ity
. 

  A
 
re
cr
ui
tm
en
t 
an
d 
re
te
nt
io
n 
st
ra
te
gy
 
in
 
re
la
tio
n 
to
 
fr
on
tli
ne
 

m
an
ag
er
s 
ha
s 
be
en
 
ag
re
ed
 
an
d 
a 
re
cr
ui
tm
en
t 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
is
 

un
de
rw
ay
 w
ith
 a
n 
ex
pe
ct
ed
 t
im
el
in
e 
of
 h
av
in
g 
ne
w
 r
ec
ru
its
 i
n 

pl
ac
e 
be
tw
ee
n 
M
ay
 a
nd
 J
ul
y 
20
13
. 
R
ep
or
ts
 o
n 
st
re
ng
th
en
in
g 

T
hi
s 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en
 
ac
tio
ne
d.
 
 
A
 
m
or
e 

pe
rm
an
en
t 

st
ab
le
 

m
an
ag
em
en
t 
gr
ou
p 
ne
ed
s 
to
 

be
 
in
 
pl
ac
e 

as
 
so
on
 
as
 

po
ss
ib
le
 t
o 
se
cu
re
 l
on
g 
te
rm
 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t. 

 

45



A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 4
 

in
te
rim
 m
an
ag
em
en
t 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 i
n 
fr
on
tli
ne
 t
ea
m
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 
an
d 
ap
pr
ov
ed
. 
Im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 
is
 
un
de
rw
ay
, 
an
d 
a 

re
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 w
ith
 r
ec
ru
itm
en
t a
ct
iv
ity
 is
 p
la
nn
ed
.  
  

T
ra
in
in
g 
fo
r 
al
l f
ro
nt
lin
e 
st
af
f 
on
 t
he
 R
is
k 
an
d 
R
es
ili
en
ce
 m
od
el
 o
f 

as
se
ss
in
g 
fa
m
ili
es
 i
s 
ta
ki
ng
 p
la
ce
. 
T
hi
s 
m
od
el
 p
ro
vi
de
s 
a 
cl
ea
r 

an
d 
co
ns
is
te
nt
 f
ra
m
ew
or
k 
fo
r 
an
al
ys
in
g 
fa
m
ili
es
 w
he
re
 c
hi
ld
re
n 

m
ay
 
be
 
at
 
ris
k 
of
 
ha
rm
. 
T
he
 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
B
oa
rd
 
w
ill
 
be
 

co
ns
id
er
in
g 
th
e 
fu
rt
he
r 
ex
te
ns
io
n 
of
 t
hi
s 
ac
ro
ss
 t
he
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
, 

fo
llo
w
in
g 
th
e 
tr
ai
ni
ng
. 
F
ur
th
er
 f
ile
 a
ud
its
 w
ill
 d
em
on
st
ra
te
 w
he
th
er
 

or
 
no
t 
th
es
e 
ac
tio
ns
 
im
pa
ct
 
on
 
th
e 
qu
al
ity
 
of
 
m
an
ag
em
en
t 

ov
er
si
gh
t a
nd
 d
ec
is
io
n 
m
ak
in
g 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
8 
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 s
up
er
vi
si
on
 is
 

re
gu
la
r,
 r
ef
le
ct
iv
e,
 c
ha
lle
ng
in
g 
an
d 

m
on
ito
rs
 s
oc
ia
l w
or
ke
rs
’ a
nd
 th
ei
r 

m
an
ag
er
s’
 c
om
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

gu
id
an
ce
 p
ol
ic
y 
an
d 
pr
oc
ed
ur
e 

A
 n
ew
 s
up
er
vi
si
on
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
ha
s 
be
en
 a
gr
ee
d 
an
d 
ci
rc
ul
at
ed
, w
ith
 

cl
ea
r 
gu
id
an
ce
 o
n 
ho
w
 to
 r
ec
or
d 
th
is
 o
n 
F
ra
m
ew
or
ki
 in
 a
 s
im
pl
ifi
ed
 

pr
oc
es
s.
 A
ud
it 
w
ill
 c
le
ar
ly
 b
en
ch
m
ar
k 
im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
. 

T
hi
s 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en
 fu
lly
 a
ct
io
ne
d.
   
 

A
 
pe
rm
an
en
t 
m
an
ag
em
en
t 

gr
ou
p 
ne
ed
s 
to
 b
e 
in
 p
la
ce
 t
o 

se
cu
re
 

lo
ng
 

te
rm
 

im
pr
ov
em
en
t. 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
9 
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ss
es
sm
en
ts
 a
re
 

an
al
yt
ic
al
, t
im
el
y,
 c
om
pr
eh
en
si
ve
 a
nd
 u
p 

to
 d
at
e,
 a
nd
 r
ob
us
tly
 id
en
tif
y 
ne
ed
s,
 r
is
ks
 

an
d 
pr
ot
ec
tiv
e 
fa
ct
or
s 
le
ad
in
g 
to
 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 a
nd
 ti
m
el
y 
ac
tio
n.
 

A
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
ba
se
d 
up
on
 T
he
 R
is
k 
an
d 
R
es
ili
en
ce
 m
od
el
 

ha
s 
be
en
 c
om
m
is
si
on
ed
 a
nd
 s
ta
rt
ed
. 
A
 t
ra
in
in
g 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
ha
s 

be
en
 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
fo
r 
de
liv
er
y 
to
 
fr
on
tli
ne
 
pr
ac
tit
io
ne
rs
 
fr
om
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y,
 2
01
3.
   

A
ct
io
n 

to
 

ad
dr
es
s 

th
is
 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 

co
m
m
en
ce
d.

 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
10
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 a
ss
es
sm
en
ts
 o
f 

ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
fa
m
ili
es
 a
re
 d
yn
am
ic
 a
nd
 

th
at
 n
ew
 in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
or
 c
on
ce
rn
s 
le
ad
 to
 

a 
re
vi
ew
 o
f t
he
 c
ur
re
nt
 p
la
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
ch
ild
 

T
he
 r
es
po
ns
e 
is
 a
s 
in
 r
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
9 

A
s 
ab
ov
e.

 

 

46



A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 4
 

an
d 
w
he
n 
re
qu
ire
d 
ad
di
tio
na
l a
ct
io
n.
   

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
11
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 c
hi
ld
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 

ca
se
 c
on
fe
re
nc
es
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
in
vo
lv
e 

pa
re
nt
s 
an
d 
ch
ild
re
n.
   

A
 n
ew
 m
od
el
 c
al
le
d,
 ‘S
tr
en
gt
he
ni
ng
 F
am
ili
es
’ i
s 
in
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t a
s 

an
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
at
 c
hi
ld
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
co
nf
er
en
ce
s 
to
 i
nv
ol
ve
 f
am
ili
es
.  

T
hi
s 
w
ill
 
be
 
op
er
at
io
na
l 
fr
om
 
A
ug
us
t, 
20
13
. 
A
 
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 

do
cu
m
en
t 
fo
r 
ch
ild
 
pr
ot
ec
tio
n 
co
nf
er
en
ce
s 
fo
r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 

pa
re
nt
s 
ha
s 
be
en
 c
om
pl
et
ed
 i
n 
dr
af
t 
an
d 
w
ill
 b
e 
op
er
at
io
na
l 
in
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
13
. A
 fe
ed
ba
ck
 le
tte
r 
w
ill
 a
ls
o 
be
 s
en
t t
o 
pa
re
nt
s.
   
 

A
ll 
th
e 
bu
ild
in
g 
bl
oc
ks
 f
or
 t
hi
s 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 
ar
e 
in
 p
la
ce
, 

th
is
 r
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
ha
s 
no
t 

ye
t b
ee
n 
co
m
pl
et
ed
. 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
12
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 c
hi
ld
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 

an
d 
ch
ild
 in
 n
ee
d 
pl
an
s 
ar
e 
sp
ec
ifi
c 
an
d 

m
ea
su
ra
bl
e 
an
d 
fo
cu
s 
on
 th
e 
ke
y 
ne
ed
s 

an
d 
ris
ks
 a
nd
 in
cl
ud
e 
ro
bu
st
 c
on
tin
ge
nc
y 

ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 th
at
 a
re
 u
nd
er
st
oo
d 
by
 

pa
re
nt
s 
as
 w
el
l a
s 
pr
of
es
si
on
al
s.
 

T
he
 t
ra
in
in
g 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
re
fe
rr
ed
 t
o 
ab
ov
e 
is
 s
ta
rt
in
g 
in
 F
eb
ru
ar
y 

20
13
 a
nd
 i
s 
a 
fo
cu
s 
ar
ea
 f
or
 n
ew
 A
dv
an
ce
d 
P
ra
ct
iti
on
er
 g
ro
up
.  

G
oo
d 
pr
ac
tic
e 
fr
om
 
ot
he
r 
Lo
ca
l 
A
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 
is
 
cu
rr
en
tly
 
be
in
g 

co
ns
id
er
ed
 t
o 
co
m
pl
et
e 
a 
ne
w
 c
hi
ld
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
pl
an
 f
or
m
at
, 
w
hi
ch
 

is
 m
or
e 
fo
cu
ss
ed
 a
nd
 w
ill
 m
ak
e 
m
or
e 
se
ns
e 
fo
r 
fa
m
ili
es
. 
 T
hi
s 

lin
ks
 
in
to
 
th
e 
S
tr
en
gt
he
ni
ng
 
F
am
ili
es
 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 
an
d 
w
ill
 
be
 

op
er
at
io
na
l f
ro
m
 A
ug
us
t 2
01
3.
 

A
s 
co
m
m
en
t a
bo
ve
 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
13
  r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 c
or
e 
gr
ou
ps
 a
re
 

re
gu
la
r 
an
d 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
de
ve
lo
p 
an
d 

im
pl
em
en
t t
he
 c
hi
ld
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
pl
an
, a
nd
 

th
at
 th
es
e 
pl
an
s 
ar
e 
m
on
ito
re
d 
by
 c
hi
ld
 

pr
ot
ec
tio
n 
co
nf
er
en
ce
s.
 

A
ct
io
n 
ha
s 
be
en
 t
ak
en
 t
o 
in
cr
ea
se
 b
us
in
es
s 
su
pp
or
t 
in
 o
rd
er
 t
o 

bu
ild
 in
 s
ys
te
m
s 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 c
or
e 
gr
ou
ps
. 
 T
he
 a
dd
iti
on
al
 b
us
in
es
s 

su
pp
or
t 
re
cr
ui
tm
en
t 
is
 
un
de
rw
ay
 
w
ith
 
w
or
ke
rs
 
ex
pe
ct
ed
 
to
 

co
m
m
en
ce
 in
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3.
 W
or
ks
ho
ps
 o
n 
co
re
 g
ro
up
s 
w
er
e 
al
so
 

he
ld
 w
ith
 s
ta
ff 
in
 D
ec
em
be
r 
20
12
 a
nd
 th
e 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 m
on
ito
rin
g 

sy
st
em
 h
as
 a
ls
o 
be
en
 a
m
en
de
d.
 

 A
ll 
th
e 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
pr
ep
ar
at
or
y 

ac
tio
n 
ha
s 
ta
ke
n 
pl
ac
e,
 a
ll 
th
e 

m
ec
ha
ni
sm
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
in
 p
la
ce
 b
y 

A
pr
il 

20
13
 

an
d 

re
po
rt
s 

fo
llo
w
in
g 
th
is
 w
ill
 i
nd
ic
at
e 
th
e 

su
cc
es
s 
of
 
th
e 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 
an
d 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
ts
. 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
14
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 fi
rs
t l
in
e 

m
an
ag
er
s 
ha
ve
 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
 s
ki
lls
, 

kn
ow
le
dg
e 
an
d 
ex
pe
rie
nc
e 
to
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 

un
de
rt
ak
e 
th
ei
r 
ro
le
. 

 IL
M
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 f
or
 a
ll 
fir
st
 li
ne
 m
an
ag
er
s,
 a
nd
 r
ec
ru
itm
en
t s
tr
at
eg
y 
to
 

en
su
re
 
hi
gh
 
ca
lib
re
 
m
an
ag
er
s.
 
 
S
ee
 
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 
7 
an
d 

ad
di
tio
na
lly
, I
LM
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 fo
r 
al
l f
irs
t l
in
e 
m
an
ag
er
s 
is
 in
 p
la
ce
. 

S
ee
 
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 
7 
an
d 

ad
di
tio
na
lly
, 
IL
M
 t
ra
in
in
g 
fo
r 
al
l 

fir
st
 l
in
e 
m
an
ag
er
s 
is
 i
n 
pl
ac
e.
  

.  

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
15
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 r
ef
er
ra
ls
 a
re
 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
ly
 r
is
k 
as
se
ss
ed
 a
nd
 

 In
te
rim
 F
A
S
T
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 a
pp
ro
ve
d 
fo
r 
ad
di
tio
na
l s
ta
ff,
 a
nd
 a
re
 

be
in
g 
im
pl
em
en
te
d 
re
su
lti
ng
 
in
 
sm
al
le
r 
te
am
s 
w
ith
 
a 
1 
to
 
4 

m
an
ag
er
 :
 w
or
ke
r 
ra
tio
 a
nd
 i
nc
re
as
ed
 c
ap
ac
ity
 a
t 
th
e 
co
nt
ac
t 

T
hi
s 

ac
tio
n 

is
 
th
er
ef
or
e 

co
m
pl
et
ed
 

w
ith
 

fu
rt
he
r 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
ts
 
w
ill
 
ta
ke
 
pl
ac
e 

47



A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 4
 

pr
io
rit
is
ed
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
fa
m
ily
 a
ss
es
sm
en
t 

an
d 
sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
 te
am
 (
F
A
S
T
).
 

de
sk
. 
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 a
ls
o 
ad
dr
es
s 
is
su
es
 o
f 
tim
el
in
es
s.
 A
 s
pe
ci
fic
 R
is
k 

A
ss
es
sm
en
t 
M
od
el
 is
 b
ei
ng
 d
el
iv
er
ed
 v
ia
 t
ra
in
in
g 
co
m
m
en
ci
ng
 in
 

F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
13
. 
M
ea
nw
hi
le
 t
he
 M
ul
ti-
A
ge
nc
y 
S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
H
ub
 is
 

in
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t 
an
d 
w
ill
 b
e 
im
pl
em
en
te
d 
on
 a
 p
ha
se
d 
ba
si
s 
fr
om
 

A
pr
il,
 w
ith
 fu
ll 
im
pl
em
en
ta
tio
n 
by
 J
ul
y 
20
13
.  
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 le
ad
 to
 m
or
e 

ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
m
ul
ti-
ag
en
cy
 r
is
k 
as
se
ss
m
en
t a
nd
 p
rio
ris
at
io
n.
  

th
is
 
ye
ar
 
to
 
st
re
ng
th
en
 
an
d 

em
be
d 
th
es
e 
im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
. 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
16
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
st
ab
lis
h 
a 
ro
bu
st
 q
ua
lit
y 

as
su
ra
nc
e 
fr
am
ew
or
k 
fo
r 
ch
ild
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 

en
qu
iri
es
, w
hi
ch
 m
on
ito
rs
 th
e 
qu
al
ity
 o
f 

de
ci
si
on
 m
ak
in
g.
 

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 
m
an
ag
em
en
t 
re
po
rt
in
g 
is
 
be
in
g 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
in
 
a 

nu
m
be
r 
of
 a
re
as
, 
fo
r 
ex
am
pl
e 
su
pe
rv
is
io
n 
an
d 
ch
ild
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 

vi
si
ts
 a
s 
re
fe
rr
ed
 t
o 
ab
ov
e.
 I
nc
re
as
ed
 m
an
ag
em
en
t 
ca
pa
ci
ty
 i
n 

F
A
S
T
 
as
 
re
fe
rr
ed
 
to
 
ab
ov
e,
 
ha
s 
be
en
 
ag
re
ed
. 
 
A
 
qu
al
ity
 

as
su
ra
nc
e 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
is
 b
ei
ng
 e
st
ab
lis
he
d 
th
at
 w
ill
 s
ee
 a
ge
nc
ie
s 

pr
es
en
tin
g 
on
 t
he
ir 
in
te
rn
al
 s
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 a
nd
 q
ua
lit
y 

as
su
ra
nc
e 
m
on
ito
rin
g 
ac
tiv
ity
 a
t 
th
e 
H
S
C
B
 Q
ua
lit
y 
A
ss
ur
an
ce
 

su
b-
gr
ou
p 
m
ee
tin
gs
. 
T
hi
s 
w
ill
 i
nv
ol
ve
 r
ob
us
t 
cr
iti
ca
l 
ev
al
ua
tio
n 
of
 

w
ha
t 
is
 p
re
se
nt
ed
 a
nd
 c
ha
lle
ng
ed
 w
he
re
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
. 
In
 a
dd
iti
on
, 

th
er
e 
w
ill
 
be
 
a 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
of
 
m
ul
ti-
ag
en
cy
 
th
em
ed
 
au
di
ts
 

th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 t
he
 y
ea
r 
20
13
-1
4.
 A
 p
ro
ce
ss
 o
f 
sa
m
pl
in
g 
se
rv
ic
e 
us
er
 

vi
ew
s 
an
d 
in
co
rp
or
at
in
g 
th
em
 i
nt
o 
qu
al
ity
 a
ss
ur
an
ce
 a
ct
iv
ity
 i
s 

be
in
g 
es
ta
bl
is
he
d.
 A
 s
er
vi
ce
 u
se
r 
in
vo
lv
em
en
t 
st
ra
te
gy
 2
01
2-
14
 

ha
s 
be
en
 p
ro
du
ce
d.
   

A
ll 
th
e 

ne
ce
ss
ar
y 

bu
ild
in
g 

bl
oc
ks
 
ar
e 
in
 
pl
ac
e 
fo
r 
th
is
 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 
al
th
ou
gh
 n
ot
 

ye
t e
m
be
dd
ed
. 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
17
  r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
pr
of
es
si
on
al
s 
fr
om
 a
ll 

ag
en
ci
es
, i
nc
lu
di
ng
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
so
ci
al
 c
ar
e 

un
de
rs
ta
nd
 th
ei
r 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s 
w
ith
 

re
ga
rd
 to
 c
hi
ld
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
an
d 
m
ak
e 
us
e 

of
 e
sc
al
at
io
n 
pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 if
 th
ey
 b
el
ie
ve
 

th
at
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
ar
e 
no
t r
ec
ei
vi
ng
 

ap
pr
op
ria
te
 s
er
vi
ce
s.
 

T
he
 r
ec
en
tly
 c
om
pl
et
ed
 in
de
pe
nd
en
t a
ud
it 
w
ill
 in
fo
rm
 w
ha
t a
ct
iv
ity
 

is
 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 
de
ve
lo
p 
th
e 
co
m
m
on
 
un
de
rs
ta
nd
in
g 
th
at
 
al
l 

ag
en
ci
es
 h
av
e 
co
nc
er
ni
ng
 t
he
ir 
ch
ild
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
re
sp
on
si
bi
lit
ie
s.
 

A
w
ar
en
es
s 
of
 t
he
 '
Le
ve
ls
 o
f 
N
ee
d'
 d
oc
um
en
t 
an
d 
W
es
t 
M
er
ci
a 

C
hi
ld
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
P
ro
ce
du
re
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
ke
y 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 

st
ra
te
gy
 
un
de
r 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t 
cu
rr
en
tly
 
an
d 
ne
xt
 
ye
ar
's
 
H
S
C
B
 

B
us
in
es
s 
P
la
n.
 I
t 
is
 n
ot
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 p
os
si
bl
e 
to
 id
en
tif
y 
th
e 
ex
te
nt
 t
o 

w
hi
ch
 t
he
 c
ur
re
nt
 e
sc
al
at
io
n 
po
lic
y 
is
 b
ei
ng
 u
se
d 
an
d 
th
is
 is
 b
ei
ng
 

ad
dr
es
se
d 
by
 t
he
 Q
ua
lit
y 
A
ss
ur
an
ce
 s
ub
-g
ro
up
 o
f 
th
e 
H
S
C
B
 s
o 

th
at
 u
se
 o
f t
he
 p
ol
ic
y 
ca
n 
be
 m
on
ito
re
d.
   

T
hi
s 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en
 

pr
og
re
ss
ed
 
th
ro
ug
h 

se
ve
ra
l s
tr
an
ds
 o
f a
ct
iv
ity
. 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
18
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 

co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
ta
ke
s 
pl
ac
e 
be
tw
ee
n 

M
ul
ti 
A
ge
nc
y 
R
is
k 
A
ss
es
sm
en
t 
C
om
m
itt
ee
 (
M
A
R
A
C
) 
an
d 
M
ul
ti 

A
ge
nc
y 
P
ub
lic
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
A
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 (
M
A
P
P
A
) 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
cl
ar
ifi
ed
 in
 N
ov
em
be
r,
 2
01
2 
an
d 
th
e 
ne
w
 M
ul
ti-
A
ge
nc
y 

T
hi
s 
ac
tio
n 
re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 
be
en
 fu
lly
 a
ct
io
ne
d.

 

48



A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 4
 

pr
ob
at
io
n 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd
 c
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
so
ci
al
 

ca
re
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
w
he
n 
m
ak
in
g 
pl
an
s 
fo
r 

of
fe
nd
er
s 
w
ho
 h
av
e 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 c
on
ta
ct
 

w
ith
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
yo
un
g 
pe
op
le
 k
no
w
n 
to
 

th
em
. 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
H
ub
 (
M
A
S
H
) 
w
ill
 a
ls
o 
su
pp
or
t t
hi
s 
ac
tio
n.
 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
19
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 r
ed
uc
e 
th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 

ch
an
ge
s 
of
 s
oc
ia
l w
or
ke
rs
 e
xp
er
ie
nc
ed
 

by
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
th
ei
r 
fa
m
ili
es
 a
nd
 

im
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
co
ns
is
te
nc
y 
an
d 
qu
al
ity
 o
f 

di
re
ct
 w
or
k.
   

T
hr
ee
 a
re
as
 o
f w
or
k 
ar
e 
ad
dr
es
si
ng
 th
is
 r
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n,
 F
irs
tly
 a
 

‘C
hi
ld
's
 
Jo
ur
ne
y’
 
6 
w
ee
k 
pr
oj
ec
t 
is
 
un
de
rw
ay
 
to
 
an
al
ys
e 

sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
 a
nd
 s
oc
ia
l 
w
or
k 
th
ro
ug
h 
Le
an
 S
ys
te
m
s 
T
hi
nk
in
g 
in
 

or
de
r 
to
 
in
fo
rm
 
th
e 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
na
l 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
an
d 
pr
ac
tic
e.
  

S
ec
on
dl
y 
an
 i
m
pr
ov
ed
 c
ar
ee
r 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
is
 b
ei
ng
 d
ev
el
op
ed
 t
o 

co
m
pl
em
en
t 
th
e 
re
cr
ui
tm
en
t 
an
d 
re
te
nt
io
n 
pl
an
 t
o 
cr
ea
te
 g
re
at
er
 

st
ab
ili
ty
 w
ith
in
 t
he
 w
or
kf
or
ce
, 
an
d 
th
ird
ly
 a
 r
is
k 
an
d 
re
si
lie
nc
e 
pl
an
 

is
 in
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t. 
 T
he
 d
ep
ar
tm
en
t i
s 
al
so
 p
ilo
tin
g 
a 
so
ci
al
 w
or
ke
r 

ap
pr
en
tic
es
hi
p 
sc
he
m
e 
w
ith
 t
he
 a
im
 o
f 
en
co
ur
ag
in
g 
lo
ca
l 
pe
op
le
 

to
 jo
in
 th
e 
de
pa
rt
m
en
t o
n 
a 
lo
ng
 te
rm
 b
as
is
.  
 

T
he
 r
an
ge
 o
f 
ac
tio
ns
 t
ak
en
 w
ill
 

ad
dr
es
s 
th
is
 r
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n.
   

H
ow
ev
er
, 
un
til
 t
he
re
 is
 a
 m
or
e 

st
ab
le
 
pe
rm
an
en
t 
w
or
kf
or
ce
, 

th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 
ch
an
ge
s 
of
 

so
ci
al
 
w
or
ke
r 
w
ill
 
re
m
ai
n 
an
 

is
su
e.

 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
20
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
e 

H
er
ef
or
ds
hi
re
 S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
C
hi
ld
re
n 

B
oa
rd
 h
as
 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
, h
ig
h 
qu
al
ity
 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
so
 th
at
 it
 c
an
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 

m
on
ito
r 
an
d 
ch
al
le
ng
e 
th
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s 

of
 c
hi
ld
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n 
pr
ac
tic
e.
 

In
 t
er
m
s 
of
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
, 
th
is
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t 
is
 b
ei
ng
 m
an
ag
ed
 b
y 

th
e 
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t 
of
 a
 H
S
C
B
 d
at
a 
se
t 
th
at
 i
nf
or
m
s 
th
e 
B
oa
rd
 o
n 

ho
w
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
it 
is
 b
ei
ng
 i
n 
m
an
ag
in
g 
co
re
 r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
tie
s 
an
d 

pr
io
rit
y 
ar
ea
s 
of
 a
ct
iv
ity
.  

T
he
 s
er
ie
s 
of
 a
ud
its
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 b
ei
ng
 m
an
ag
ed
 w
ill
 in
fo
rm
 th
e 
B
oa
rd
 

on
 t
he
 q
ua
lit
y 
of
 t
he
 w
or
k 
be
in
g 
do
ne
, 
as
 w
ill
 t
he
 i
nt
er
na
l 
re
vi
ew
 

pr
oc
es
se
s 
be
in
g 
m
an
ag
ed
 w
ith
in
 a
ll 
ag
en
ci
es
. 

 

A
ct
io
n 
ha
s 
co
m
m
en
ce
d 
fo
r 
th
is
 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n.

 

 

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
21
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
an
d 
qu
al
ity
 

as
su
ra
nc
e 
ar
ra
ng
em
en
ts
 a
re
 p
ut
 in
 p
la
ce
 

w
hi
ch
 in
cl
ud
es
 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
 q
ua
lit
at
iv
e 

in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
se
rv
ic
e 
us
er
s’
 

vi
ew
s,
 to
 e
na
bl
e 
a 
cl
ea
r 
un
de
rs
ta
nd
in
g 
of
 

cu
rr
en
t p
ra
ct
ic
e 
an
d 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 in
 c
hi
ld
 

pr
ot
ec
tio
n,
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
th
e 
im
pa
ct
 o
f 

T
he
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f t
hi
s 
fr
am
ew
or
k 
w
ill
 b
e 
in
fo
rm
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
cu
rr
en
t 

pr
oc
es
s 
of
 a
ud
its
 a
nd
 r
ev
ie
w
s 
be
in
g 
un
de
rt
ak
en
. T
he
 C
ha
ir 
of
 th
e 

H
S
C
B
 
pr
es
en
te
d 
to
 
T
he
 
S
ha
do
w
 
B
oa
rd
 
of
 
th
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 

Y
ou
ng
 P
eo
pl
es
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 F
or
um
 in
 D
ec
em
be
r 
20
12
 w
ith
 a
 v
ie
w
 

to
 
en
ab
lin
g 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
Y
ou
ng
 
P
eo
pl
e 
to
 
ha
ve
 
a 
st
ra
te
gi
c 

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t 
in
flu
en
ce
. 
A
 p
er
fo
rm
an
ce
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
fr
am
ew
or
k 
ha
s 

be
en
 d
ev
el
op
ed
 a
nd
 w
as
 fi
rs
t p
re
se
nt
ed
 to
 H
S
C
B
 a
t t
he
ir 
m
ee
tin
g 

on
 2
8t
h 
Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
13
. 
N
ot
 a
ll 
m
ea
su
re
s 
ar
e 
cu
rr
en
tly
 a
va
ila
bl
e 

an
d 
it 
is
 a
nt
ic
ip
at
ed
 t
ha
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 t
o 
ev
ol
ve
. 
A
 q
ua
lit
y 

T
hi
s 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en
 

ac
tio
ne
d 

w
ith
 

a 
de
ve
lo
pi
ng
 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 

of
 

w
or
k.

 

 

49



A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 4
 

se
rv
ic
es
 o
n 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
th
ei
r 
fa
m
ili
es
. 

as
su
ra
nc
e 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
ha
s 
be
en
 
es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
th
at
 
w
ill
 
se
e 

ag
en
ci
es
 p
re
se
nt
in
g 
on
 t
he
ir 
in
te
rn
al
 s
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 

an
d 
qu
al
ity
 a
ss
ur
an
ce
 m
on
ito
rin
g 
ac
tiv
ity
 a
t 
H
S
C
B
 Q
A
 s
ub
-g
ro
up
 

m
ee
tin
gs
. 
T
he
re
 w
ill
 t
he
n 
be
 r
ob
us
t 
cr
iti
ca
l 
ev
al
ua
tio
n 
of
 w
ha
t 
is
 

pr
es
en
te
d 
an
d 
ch
al
le
ng
e 
w
he
re
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
. 
In
 a
dd
iti
on
, 
th
er
e 
w
ill
 

be
 a
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
of
 m
ul
ti-
ag
en
cy
 t
he
m
ed
 a
ud
its
 t
hr
ou
gh
ou
t 
th
e 

ye
ar
 
20
13
-1
4.
 
T
o 
da
te
, 
th
er
e 
ha
s 
be
en
 
no
 
se
rv
ic
e 
us
er
 

in
vo
lv
em
en
t i
n 
th
e 
qu
al
ity
 a
ss
ur
an
ce
 p
ro
ce
ss
 a
nd
 th
e 
ne
ed
 fo
r 
th
e 

ex
pe
rie
nc
e 
of
 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
fa
m
ili
es
 
re
ce
iv
in
g 
se
rv
ic
es
 
to
 
be
 

in
cl
ud
ed
 i
n 
qu
al
ity
 a
ss
ur
an
ce
 a
ct
iv
ity
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
re
co
gn
is
ed
. 
A
 

pr
oc
es
s 
of
 s
am
pl
in
g 
se
rv
ic
e 
us
er
 v
ie
w
s 
an
d 
in
co
rp
or
at
in
g 
th
em
 

in
to
 q
ua
lit
y 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
ac
tiv
ity
 is
 b
ei
ng
 e
st
ab
lis
he
d.
 A
 s
er
vi
ce
 u
se
r 

in
vo
lv
em
en
t 
st
ra
te
gy
 
20
12
-1
4 
ha
s 
be
en
 
pr
od
uc
ed
. 
A
 
qu
al
ity
 

as
su
ra
nc
e 
fr
am
ew
or
k 
in
co
rp
or
at
in
g 

se
rv
ic
e 

us
er
 
fe
ed
ba
ck
 

st
ra
te
gy
 
pi
lo
t, 
to
 
de
ve
lo
p 
a 
se
rie
s 
of
 
to
ol
s 
to
 
tr
ac
k 
us
er
 

in
vo
lv
em
en
t i
s 
pl
an
ne
d.
   

R
ec
om
m
en
da
tio
n 
22
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
th
e 

au
th
or
ity
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
er
e 
is
 a
 r
ob
us
t 

au
di
tin
g 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
th
at
 in
cl
ud
es
 a
 

fo
cu
s 
on
 th
e 
ex
pe
rie
nc
e 
of
 th
e 
ch
ild
 a
nd
 

th
e 
im
pa
ct
 a
nd
 o
ut
co
m
es
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 

pr
ov
is
io
n 
an
d 
th
at
 th
is
 le
ad
s 
to
 th
e 

id
en
tif
ic
at
io
n 
of
 th
em
es
 a
nd
 c
le
ar
 a
ct
io
n 

pl
an
s 
w
hi
ch
 a
re
 r
ob
us
tly
 m
on
ito
re
d 
an
d 

im
pl
em
en
te
d.
 

W
hi
ls
t 
a 
qu
al
ity
 a
ss
ur
an
ce
 p
ro
gr
am
m
e 
w
as
 a
lre
ad
y 
in
 p
la
ce
 p
rio
r 

to
 
th
e 
in
sp
ec
tio
n,
 
a 
qu
al
ity
 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
is
 
be
in
g 

es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
th
at
 w
ill
 s
ee
 a
ge
nc
ie
s 
pr
es
en
tin
g 
on
 t
he
ir 
in
te
rn
al
 

sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 
an
d 
qu
al
ity
 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
m
on
ito
rin
g 

ac
tiv
ity
 a
t H
S
C
B
 q
ua
lit
y 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
su
b-
gr
ou
p 
m
ee
tin
gs
. T
he
re
 w
ill
 

th
en
 
be
 
ro
bu
st
 
cr
iti
ca
l 
ev
al
ua
tio
n 
of
 
w
ha
t 
is
 
pr
es
en
te
d 
an
d 

ch
al
le
ng
e 
w
he
re
 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y.
 
In
 
ad
di
tio
n,
 
th
er
e 
w
ill
 
be
 
a 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
of
 m
ul
ti-
ag
en
cy
 t
he
m
ed
 a
ud
its
 t
hr
ou
gh
ou
t 
th
e 
ye
ar
 

20
13
-1
4.
 

T
he
 
th
em
es
 
an
d 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
s 
w
ill
 
be
 
m
on
ito
re
d 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
in
g 
B
oa
rd
.  

T
he
 f
irs
t 
m
ul
ti-
ag
en
cy
 a
ud
it 
to
ok
 p
la
ce
 i
n 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
13
 a
nd
 a
 

re
po
rt
 o
n 
th
is
 is
 in
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t. 

T
hi
s 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en
 fu
lly
 a
ct
io
ne
d.
  

 

  

50



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

David Penrose, Democratic Services, on (01432) 383690 
  

 

MEETING: HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 22 MARCH 2013 

TITLE OF REPORT: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 

REPORT BY:  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR – LAW, GOVERNANCE 
AND RESILIENCE 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To consider the Committee’s work programme. 

Recommendation 

 THAT: the work programme as appended be noted, subject to any comments the 
Committee wishes to make.   

Key Points Summary 

• The Committee is asked to note its work programme and to note progress on current work. . 

Alternative Options 

1 It is for the Committee to determine its work programme as it sees fit to reflect the priorities 
facing Herefordshire.  Any number of subjects could be included in the work programme.  
However, the Committee does need to be selective and ensure that the work programme is 
focused on the key issues, realistic and deliverable within the existing resources available. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The Committee needs to develop a manageable work programme to ensure that scrutiny is 
focused, effective and produces clear outcomes. 

Introduction and Background 

3 An outline work programme only is appended for this meeting. This is because the programme 
is under review.    

 

AGENDA ITEM 10

51



Community Impact 

5 The topics selected for scrutiny should have regard to what matters to the County’s residents. 

Financial Implications 

6 The costs of the work of the Scrutiny Committee will have to be met within existing resources.  
It should be noted the costs of running scrutiny will be subject to an assessment to support 
appropriate processes. 

Legal Implications 

7 The Council is required to deliver an Overview and Scrutiny function. 

Risk Management 

8 There is a reputational risk to the Council if the Overview and Scrutiny function does not 
operate effectively.  The arrangements for the development of the work programme should 
help to mitigate this risk. 

Consultees 

9 Following initial consultation on topics for scrutiny with Directors and Members of the Cabinet.  
all Members of the Council were invited to suggest items for scrutiny.   

Appendices 

10 Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee outline Work Programme 

 Herefordshire Public Services Rolling Programme  

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

 

52



HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
ITEMS IDENTIFIED FOR INCLUSION IN THE WORK PROGRAME 

DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 

 

12 APRIL 2013  

Wye Valley NHS Trust; 
Clinical Commissioning Group; 
and NHS West Mercia Cluster. 
 
 

 
Stroke Services 

To provide a report on the Trust’s Annual Plan for 2013/14.  
Content of future updates to ensure they present clear picture 
of service delivery; with performance information to be 
provided in advance of the meeting and with each meeting to 
have a particular purpose.  (May 12)  
Cluster performance data to be monitored quarterly. 
Committee to assess the impact on population. (July 12) 
To receive an update. 

Work Programme To consider the Committees Work Programme 

3 MAY 2013 at 7pm 

Quality Accounts: 
Wye Valley NHS Trust  
West Midlands Ambulance 
NHS Trust 
2gether NHS Foundation Trust 

To consider the Quality Accounts 

Work Programme To consider the Committees Work Programme 

JULY 2013 

Recovery Plan for Children 
Safeguarding 

To receive a progress report on the Action Plan. 

Strategic Plan for Delivering 
Adult Services 

To consider a quarterly report containing a schedule of 
performance reports outlining the savings that are being 
achieved through the Strategic Plan. (July12) 

 
The following issues have been identified for consideration but not scheduled:  
 

Root and Branch Reviews – (relating to this Committee - pre consideration by Cabinet) 

Children’s health and wellbeing (a focus on Childhood obesity) 

Health Trust Quality Accounts (annually in spring if required) 

National Health Policies 

Committee visit to 2gether NHS Foundation Trust followed by update on user feedback. 
 

53



54



T
as
k 
an
d
 F
in
is
h
 R
ev
ie
w
s 
–P
ro
g
re
ss
 R
ep
o
rt
 

R
E
V
IE
W
S
 ID

E
N
T
IF
IE
D
 F
O
R
 F
E
A
S
IB
IL
IT
Y
 S
T
U
D
Y
 

P
ro
p
o
se
d
 R
ev
ie
w
 

S
ta
tu
s 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 

S
er

vi
ce

 
F

ea
si

bi
lit

y 
S

tu
dy

 y
et

 to
 c

om
m

en
ce

.  

R
E
V
IE
W
S
 IN

 P
R
O
G
R
E
S
S
 

R
ev
ie
w
 

M
ee
ti
n
g
s 

C
o
m
m
en
t 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
of

 A
du

lts
 in

 th
ei

r 
ow

n 
ho

m
es

  
11

/3
/1

3 
In

iti
al

 m
ee

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 G

ro
up

. 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

14
/3

/1
3 

In
iti

al
 m

ee
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
. A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

lin
ic

al
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 G
ro

up
 (

H
C

C
G

),
 i

t 
w

as
 d

ec
id

ed
 t

o 
fo

cu
s 

th
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
n 

G
P

 O
ut

 o
f 

H
ou

rs
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

  
F

ur
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
 th

at
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 t

he
 in

iti
al

 s
co

pi
ng

 d
oc

um
en

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
la

te
r 

re
vi

ew
s,

 to
 b

e 
in

st
ig

at
ed

 o
nc

e 
th

e 
H

C
C

G
 h

ad
 b

ee
n 

in
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 

si
x 

m
on

th
s.

 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

of
 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 

14
/3

/1
3 

In
iti

al
 m

ee
tin

g 
of

 th
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
. 

R
E
V
IE
W
S
 C
O
M
P
L
E
T
E
D
 A
N
D
 A
W
A
IT
IN
G
 R
E
S
P
O
N
S
E
 F
R
O
M
 T
H
E
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
 

R
ev
ie
w
 

 

T
he

re
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 n
o 

re
vi

ew
s 

in
 th

is
 s

ec
tio

n.
 

 

R
E
V
IE
W
S
 C
O
M
P
L
E
T
E
D
 A
N
D
 S
U
B
JE

C
T
 T
O
 M
O
N
IT
O
R
IN
G
 O
F
 T
H
E
 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
 A
C
T
IO
N
 P
L
A
N
 

R
ev
ie
w
 

C
o
m
m
en
t 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
  

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 r
ep

or
te

d 
to

 H
O

S
C

 7
 F

eb
ru

ar
y.

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 p
ro

gr
am

m
ed

 fo
r 

Ju
ly

 2
01

3 
 

55



56


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	Draft Hosc Minutes 7 Feb 2013v1

	7 WEST MIDLANDS AMBULANCE NHS TRUST
	8 2GETHER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST
	9 CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING - IMPROVEMENT  NOTICE AND PROGRESS ON THE OFSTED RECOMMENDATIONS
	Scrutiny - Improvement Notice - Appendix 1
	Scrutiny - Improvement Notice - Appendix 2
	Scrutiny - Improvement Notice - Appendix 3
	Scrutiny - Improvement Notice - Appendix 4

	10 WORK PROGRAMME
	Draft HOSC work programme March 2013
	Progress on CurrentReviews at 11 March 2013


